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CHAIR HOKAMA: .. . (gavel) . .. Council's Committee on Budget and Finance shall come to
order. This is our regular meeting of December 15, 2015. And this morning we have
present, our Vice-Chairman, Mr. White.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Committee members, Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aloha, good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aloha, good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And the Committee excuses Ms. Baisa and Mr. Carroll at this time. We
have three items for today, Members, four items, excuse me. So we'll take public
testimony on those items we have agendized. Testifiers have three minutes to share
their thoughts. We shall assist them with timing and we shall also request any
testimony from our District Offices for those that wish to share comment from those
areas. So stating that, I'll say good morning to our District Offices and ask Ms. Lono,
of Hana, if anyone wishes to provide testimony?
MS. LONO: Good morning, Chair. This is Dawn Lono at the Hana Office and there is no one
waiting to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Lono. We'll go to Lanai and ask Ms. Fernandez for any
testifiers.
MS. FERNANDEZ: Good morning, Chair. This is Denise Fernandez on Lanai and there is no
one waiting to testify.
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CHAIR HOKAMA:
testimony?

Thank you.

And on Molokai, Ms. Alcon, anyone wishing to provide

MS. ALCON: Good morning, Chair. This is Ella Alcon on Molokai and there is no one here
waiting to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, ladies. We shall go to the Chambers and we'll ask
Bobbie Patnode if she would come forward and share her comments with the
Committee. And following her will be Sydney Smith. And before I start, thank you
very much, we did receive your testimony that you submitted earlier. So thank you
very much for submitting it .

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..

MS. PATNODE: Great. Thank you and aloha.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Aloha.
MS. PATNODE: My name is Bobbie Patnode. I'm the moderator for the Agriculture Working
Group, Vice-President of the Kula Community Association, and a partner in Patnode
Family Farm. I'm testifying today to summarize what the Ag Working Group has been
doing since BF -70 was last on the Budget and Finance agenda. There was a lot of
good discussion at the meeting in March and the Ag Working Group committed to
responding to the Committee with four things: remarks and comments on the bill,
analysis of County data regarding the impact of changing to market value, ways the
County could update the ag use values, and qualifications we recommend for ag
inspectors. We've been working for many months. We reviewed the bill in detail. We
have pages of comments we would like to review with those who wrote the bill. We
were lucky to find Dr. Margaret Stumpp, a coffee farmer who has a Ph.D. in economics
and years of experience in data analysis, who took our County's data and ran some
scenarios for us. She could not be here today but we did send her report as
testimony. Having spent so much time on this, we concluded, number one, we need to
retain ag use value. Ag use value reflects the value of land when used for ag purposes,
not as an investment. Market value will not achieve the results we want in terms of ag
support and controlling sprawl. In fact, change to market value would increase the
rate at which Maui County loses land as more landowners are motivated to sell.
Leased rates would increase significantly, causing more ranchers to seize operations.
Housing that is affordable on ag land would be lost as landowners are forced to raise
rents, and there are more unintended consequences. Number two, the County could
update ag use values to 2015 numbers. Maui's values are from 1965. There are a
number of ways this could be done. Even if we simply increase ag use values by the
rate of inflation since '65, the County would realize 1.2 million in additional revenue at
today's rates. We tried using the NASS values, collapsing their data to more closely fit
what Maui's categories are, and that would give us an additional 1.2 million. Number
three, we need to update the dedication rules so the County can use this tool to
encourage ag, control sprawl, and support farmers. This means reasonable dedication
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reduction timeframes and rollback penalties. And number four, we need to have
qualified inspectors to ensure that the Ag property tax rates are going to real farms.
We believe many of the issues faced by our real property assessors would be
addressed if Maui's inspectors had ag training and experience. We are working on a
draft bill for inspectors, which would include those qualifications. We're ready to sit
down with you and work on making this a better bill or even replacing it with specific
bills to target those areas so Maui County's legislative and financial support for
agriculture goes to those for whom it is intended. Thanks for the opportunity to work
on this with you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for sharing your comments this morning. It was very
informative, so thank you. Members, you've heard the comments of Ms. Patnode and
the group she represents that volunteered to assist us. Any questions for the lady on
her testimony, Members? Okay, thank you very much, Ms. Patnode.
MS. PATNODE: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We appreciate your efforts.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Sydney Smith? Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry, Chair. Is there, when the matter comes up for
discussion, will they be able to be here as resource? Or Ms. Patnode, or anyone of the
group?
CHAIR HOKAMA: If they're available, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we aren't able to tell them exactly what time-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --we11 take up the matter.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Sydney Smith?
MS. SMITH: Good morning. My name is Sydney Smith. I'm the president of the Maui Coffee
Association and I own Maliko Estate Coffee Farm in Makawao. I'm also a member of
the Ag Working Group. I'm speaking this morning on behalf of the Maui Coffee
Association and as a member of the Ag Working Group. I'm only going to address
some of the problems with Section 3.48.351, Lands Dedicated for Agricultural Use.
Besides the petition to dedicate, there are over a dozen separate requirements for the
farmer or rancher to comply with. For instance, number seven, evidence that the
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dedicated area will produce farm income prior to the expiration of the dedicated
period, which could potentially be 20 years into the future. Evidence which is defined
as incontrovertible proof is impossible to supply for anything that will absolutely
happen in the future and agriculture is one of the most uncertain businesses there is.
Failure to produce this evidence is grounds for cancellation of the dedication and
rollback tax and penalties. Another issue with dedication is that they need to be
recorded with the State Bureau of Conveyances and this requires clear title. Many
ranches and farms are made up of multiple TMKs and some go back to the Great
Mahele. All do not have clear title, making dedication impossible for them. Then after
submitting the petition and complying with all the requirements, there's the review of
the petition by the newly formed, voluntary Agriculture Advisory Commission or
Committee that's called for in BF-70. By conducting an informal poll of farmers in the
Maui Coffee Association and my neighbors currently receiving Ag tax rates without
dedication, I asked if they would apply for full dedication. Over 80 percent responded
that they would. There are currently 4,620 Ag-zoned parcels, many already in
dedication but since BF -70 has no provision for parcels already dedicated, all parcels
would have to go through this process again. Even if only half of these landowners
seek dedication, at a minimum of 30 minutes per review, the Director, as well as a
purely voluntary review committee, would need to spend over 2,000 hours reviewing
these dedications. Most voluntary committees, like the Arborist Committee, meet once
a month for three hours. Even if the Ag Dedication Committee met once a week, it
would take nearly seven years to review every dedication and this is too much to ask of
a voluntary committee and too much to ask of a Director with no agriculture
experience or knowledge. After meeting with Councilmember Mike Victorino this past
October, we discussed the dedication bill that was submitted before Council in 2010.
The Ag Working Group supports amending the dedication provisions in a practical way
that supports the farmer or the rancher.
We're willing to do this with the
EAR Committee or Budget and Finance Committee with the support of the Council.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your testimony this morning. Members, any questions for
Ms. Smith on testimony presented? Thank you, Ms. Smith, for your comments this -MS. SMITH: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --morning. Warren Watanabe, please?
MR. WATANABE: Good moming, Chair Hokama, members of the Committee. My name is
Warren Watanabe. I'm the Executive Director of the Maui County Farm Bureau. We'd
like to thank you very much for this opportunity to testify on this measure that will
have long-term impacts on the future of agriculture in Maui County. I come before
you today providing comments on BF-70, relating to Agriculture land tax rates. The
Maui County Farm Bureau is a general agriculture advocacy organization comprised of
Maui's commercial farm and ranch families, businesses and organizations. The Maui
County Farm Bureau recognizes the importance of tax revenue for the County budget.
I have received many phone calls by our members, expressing concern about what can
happen. Many expressed fear about the uncertainty surrounding agriculture, their
difficulties in coping with weather, regulatory and market challenges. They don't
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know if they can remain in business for the term suggested for dedication. Our
mission as Maui County Farm Bureau is to advocate for viable agriculture in the
County and State. We understand the fear expressed by our farmers and ranchers
but also know that unless, that we have lands committed to farming and ranching, the
future of our industry is uncertain. Dedication can provide the means to target
investments, lower lease rates, and provide incentive to encourage viable agricultural
lands. For this reason, we strongly supported the Important Agricultural Lands
initiative. We appreciate the Council's deliberative process in addressing this issue. It
is complex and while its solutions may seem simple, it is not. Our primary goal is to
increase local agricultural production of all sizes. We need all kinds and sizes of
agriculture to be successful. Large entities provide economies of scale for our imports
and services needed by our smaller growers. As we address tax rates, we need to
make sure we do not inadvertently lose farms and ranches since high rates make it
more attractive to seek highest and best use of lands. We hope to continue to work
with you to develop a solution that works for all of us. And let's keep in mind, while
my heart is in Kula, this bill is for all of Maui County. Thank you and Merry
Christmas.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Watanabe. Members, questions for Mr. Watanabe on
testimony presented this morning? Having none, Mr. Watanabe, thank you very much
for your presence.
MR. WATANABE: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
manao.

Annette Niles?

Good morning, Annette.

Please come and share your

MS. NILES: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. NILES: Good morning, Council. My name is Annette Niles, farmer, rancher, on the Ag
Working Group and also an ag teacher for Kula Elementary School. I'm just here, I
mean, I don't want to be repeating over and over and over, but my thing, my take on
the BF-70 and the dedication, you know, for me, I'm dedicated and I've been dedicated
from the '60s, through my parents. My point of dedication, and, is, today's day and
age, is hard. It's not like the '60s and '70s 'cause there was no people coming in,
buying out our ag properties and having to let people use it to farm on. What the
problem is right now, what the problem is, a big problem, is the gentleman farm,
you're right, gentleman farm, buying out the agriculture, not letting the people stay on
the property and farm with it. They pulling them in but they also taking them out
once they get their taxes and everything in place as a farmer, which they ain't no
farmer, or rancher for that matter. And this is where we are losing our agriculture.
And I am in support of this dedication. But, again, it's gonna be hard for people. I've
talked to people. They cannot, you know, they have, they want to let their people use
their place but they cannot commit to the dedication. So it's one total different, you
know, ballgame in this day and age. But I so think what's gonna be is our inspectors
being on this where, you know, they will be checking farms and ranches out to catch
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the ones that need to be caught.
Christmas, everybody.

And that's all I gotta say.

Thank you.

Merry

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Niles. Members, any questions for Ms. Niles on testimony
shared this morning? Having none, Ms. Niles, thank you and Merry Christmas to you.
MS. NILES: Same to you. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Is there anyone else who would like to give testimony this morning on any
of the four items we have agendized? Please make yourself known. We11 go to the
District Offices. Ms. Lono, anyone has come by to give testimony? Ms. Lono, anyone
in Hana? Okay, we lost Hana. Ms. Fernandez, anyone on Lanai wishing to provide
testimony?
MS. FERNANDEZ: There is no one waiting to testify at the Lanai Office.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Molokai, anyone else, Ms. Alcon?
MS. ALCON: There's no one here on Molokai waiting to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much, ladies. Members, there's no further request
for testimony. With no objections, we shall close testimony for today's meeting.
COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Testimony is hereby closed, so ordered .
. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..

ITEM 38(25):

AMENDMENTS TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2016 BUDGET
(STATE HOMELAND SECURITY GRANT PROGRAM)

CHAIR HOKAMA: May I direct you, please, to the first item, BF-38(25). This is a amendment
to the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget regarding State Homeland Security Grant. And we11
have Mr. Baz, as well as our Civil Defense administrator, to please come down. And,
have Ms. Foustjoin Mr. Baz. Mr. Baz, any opening comments, sir?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. So before you this morning is a budget amendment to add
additional funding to the State Homeland Security Grant Program. We were notified at
the end of August that we were going to be receiving $244,000 of additional funds
than we were expecting, and the agreements have been executed with the additional
$500,000, in Appendix A, that is allowed for us to go beyond the normal, you know,
the estimated grant revenue. But since this is a large sum, we wanted to come before
Council here and officially accept this $244,000 additional request. So we have the
Emergency Management administrator here to discuss the specifics of this grant.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Ms. Foust, if you can share some information with the
Committee?
MS. FOUST: Thank you. When we prepare the budget, as Mr. Baz had indicated, we're
doing an estimate of what we anticipate receiving from the Homeland Security Grant
Program and we generally look at the previous year and project that going forward.
When we are putting in our grant request to the Department of Defense, we submit,
what we call, investment justifications. Our County submits more than the half
million dollars that we put in our budget. I think we submitted about $1.7 million of
grant projects and we were fortunate that above the 500,000 that we had estimated
getting from them, they approved several of the projects and we were approved for
744,000, which is the extra 244,000 that is before you now for consideration. The
amounts, or the projects that we are working on with this include generators at some
of our County facilities to help harden those for shelter during an event. It is to
harden some of our network security. It is to enhance the 911 capability at the Kihei
Police Station as backup to the current Wailuku Station and also for training and
exercise programs. So that's the bulk of what we have the monies for.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Okay, thank you, Ms. Foust.
Members, questions for Mr. Baz or
Ms. Foust on the request before Committee? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, not at this time, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and thank you, Ms. Foust, for bringing
this to us. I noticed, and it appears to be highlighted in the letter that the Mayor got,
that it appears that the bulk of the extra funds is going to be for improved cyber
protection and resiliency. Is that ...
MS. FOUST: Yes, and it wasn't that that was necessarily the extra, right. So we submitted
many projects-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, okay.
MS. FOUST: --and those were the ones that came back as approved. So we were estimating
that we would have half a million as approved projects, but they approved all of the
ones that are before you. So it wasn't one was added or taken out.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And I know some of this, this is, could be executive session
material, but can you talk about what some the, some of those improvements might
be?
MS. FOUST: I ...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Or is that going to be, resulting, is that going to go to MIS?
MS. FOUST: Yes, that would--
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MS. FOUST: --be better addressed or answered from Jacob Verkerke -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MS. FOUST: --the CTO, yes-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
MS. FOUST:

--as far as the details.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, no questions. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No questions. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No questions. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. Thank you, Anna, and for your guys' hard work to
bring forth this additional--well, to putting in the application, Mr. Chair, to get this
monies, first and foremost. I think this is, area so, with, sometimes Hawaii and Maui
has been relegated to second string and this is one of the times that I'm very happy to
see this. So, thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you, Anna and Sandy, for your hard work.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Members, one last time, any questions or comments regarding this
item? Having none, the Chair's recommending a motion to move to Council A Bill for
an Ordinance Amending Fiscal Year 2016 Budget for the County of Maui as it Pertains
to Appendix A, Part I, Grant Revenue - Schedule of Grants by Departments and
Programs, Civil Defense Agency (State Homeland Security Grant (SHSG) Program) to
pass first reading and be ordered to print. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So moved, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I have a motion by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Victorino. Any further
discussion on the motion before you, Members? Having none, all in favor of the
motion, please say "aye."
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COUNCILMEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oppose say "no." Motion passes with seven "ayes," two excused.
VOTE:

AYES:

Chair
Hokama,
Vice-Chair
White,
and
Councilmembers
Cochran,
Couch,
Crivello,
Guzman, and Victorino.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Baisa and Carroll.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

FIRST READING of bill by C.R.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Foust.
MS. FOUST: Thank you. Have a good day.

ITEM 38(27):

AMENDMENTS TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2016 BUDGET
(DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE, COUNTYWIDE COSTS)

CHAIR HOKAMA: May I direct you to BF-38(27). This is under Department of Finance,
Countywide Costs. We have, from Mr. Baz, a proposed bill for an ordinance to amend
the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget regarding Countywide Costs. Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good morning, Members, again. So before you is a request
to move 1% million that was originally appropriated in the Countywide Costs, Fringe
Benefits Program for workers' compensation insurance payments to the
Insurance/Self-Insurance Program.
The audit, when there were, auditors were
looking at our expenditures, specifically related to insurance programs, they noticed
that, you know, some of our Insurance Program payments were not in the Insurance
Program, they were in Fringe Benefit Costs and so the impetus of moving this over is
specifically to allow for the management of our insurance programs to be solely
maintained by the Risk Management Division of Corporation Counsel, rather than it
being split, some between Department of Finance and some between the Department
of Corporation Counsel. I don't see anybody from Risk Management here but I can try
to answer any questions that you might have related to this as well.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Why don't we have Mr. Ueoka present? Okay,
Members, this is a request to make a transfer. You've heard Mr. Baz's comments and
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I did go through the numbers. It's a very fair request. Yeah, the margin is thin now
and it's something Mr. Wong, Mr. Baz and I will be working on for the upcoming
Budget. One thing, though, I would ask is, how often do we review those excess
carriers and insurance providers to the County? Every two years? Every three years,
Mr. Baz? How often do we ...
MR. BAZ: Yeah, I believe that we review, as far as the insurance brokers, it's, you know, I
don't, I'm not sure about that. I know we just redid it. I don't know how long it was
before. I think it was about three or four years.
CHAIR HOKAMA: But there's a periodic review of the providers-MR. BAZ: There is a periodic review ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --to ensure we're getting the best ...
MR. BAZ: Yeah. One of the things that was done within this past year was our third-party
administrator for our workers' compensation was not performing to our expectations
and so we did change third-party administrators. We, you know, found that they
weren't acting in our best interest as far as our concerns were and changed thirdparty administrators. Our new third-party administrator is doing a much better job
and has cleaned up a lot of historical challenges that they had had, so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So any of this 1.5 million is to pay off old existing claims or settlements,
are you aware? Or is this pretty much what I would call clean, fresh money?
MR. BAZ: Well, we're expecting at least $1.5 million in workers' compensation payments.
The new third-party administrator did review the old cases and closed some of the old
cases, which could have been closed earlier if they had, if the previous third-party
administrator had done their job better. So, yeah, you know, we are paying for older
claims as well, closing those out.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, at least, I thank you and Mr. Wong for making some
improvements in the program. So, thank you. Mr. White, questions for the resource
people?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yes, thank you, Chair.
year-to-date, do you know?

What are the costs for workers' comp

MR. BAZ: If you give me a couple minutes, I can pull up IFAS.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: The reason I ask, my recollection, Chair, is that the, our actual cost
exceeds this 1.5 million in the previous years but ...
MR. BAZ: I have, they did give me an estimated total projection of, for Fiscal Year '16, I don't
know what the year-to-date is, but the total projection for the, to the end of
Fiscal Year '16, is $3.2 million. So it'll definitely exceed the-- 11 -
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, so this is -MR. BAZ: --$1.5 million -VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --only ...
MR. BAZ: --appropriated.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, this is only going to cover less than half of the actual cost?
MR. BAZ: Correct, yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE:
self-insured?

Okay.

So is this money for purchasing a policy or are we totally

MR. BAZ: This money goes directly for workers' compensation payments to the workers. The
third-party administrator contract, I believe, comes out of the insurance programs pot
of money.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, but the third-party administrator is not insurance.
MR. BAZ: No-VICE-CHAIR WHITE: It's-MR. BAZ: --it's not insurance.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --a paid -MR. BAZ: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --contract as well.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, it's just the management company, correct.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So we are totally self-insured?
MR. BAZ: I think there's certain upper limits, lower and upper limits. We have excess
liability coverage, right. So the excess coverages would come from our insurance that
we do pay, but a large portion of it is our own monies that goes out.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right. Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Just so you know, Mr. White, we'll be having additional discussions, just
before our early Budget session 'cause I'd like us all to be on the same page regarding
excess carriers, self-insurance, and a few other points that I think would be good if we
were all up to speed on it.
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, you know, Chair, there's a part of me that feels like this is one of
those costs that should go, should actually be borne by each department so that they
maintain a strict focus on safety issues but I know it's much easier from an
accounting standpoint.
CHAIR HOKAMA: But it's something we can talk about with Mr. Wong and Mr. Baz, since
Mr. Wong has the risk management responsibility currently under-VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --his department. We can discuss that. Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair and Chair White. Yes, we do kind of agree with that.
mean, the management of it from our perspective, accounting and from Corporation
Counsel's liability, you know, standpoint, it's way better managed if the funds are
consolidated. The Risk Management Division has been working very hard with the
departments to explain to them, you know, what their real costs are for workers'
compensation, and it's unfortunate a lot of the costs that we've had, you know, the
additional costs we've had over the last couple of years were related to one incident.
But the departments, you know, Corporation Counsel has been working with the
departments pretty diligently on reducing those. We've done a lot of, you know,
bringing back to work for light duty kind of situation, instances, there's an employee
who was put on light duty. There was no light duty in the division that the employee
was supposed to be assigned to so we brought her in and worked at the information
center downstairs so that there was some, you know, some kind of back to work. And
so, with getting people back to work, having this new third-party administrator really
clean up that stuff is really effective in reducing our workman's compensation costs.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No, I agree. I think the Department has been doing a good job of
keeping on top of the issues and you have to because the people that are out due to
injury have to know that we care about getting them back to work and the less we talk
to them, the longer the, you know, the longer they tend to be out. So, thank you.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, and thank you, Mr. Baz. And I'm glad to hear
that we're having a change because there was some very big challenges with the
third-party administrator from what I was told, and so I'm glad to hear that has been
rectified. And you did mention, that was gonna be one of my big questions was, was
this dealing with the tragedy on Lanai this uptick, if I would call it, in workers' comp?
Was that part of the reason?
MR. BAZ: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And I thought that was, I think all of us knew that
that was part of it, so that the public understand, this is an anomaly, not something
that happens each and every year. And I think overall, Mr. Chair, I've seen safety and
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the stress on safety a lot more in the departments all across the board. I think they
are much more aware of it than ... and I want to thank Mr. Wong and the Risk
Management people for their outstanding work in trying to curb our workers' comp
challenges. So, that's all. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Cochran, any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, I know this is a needed thing. I guess the, I'm looking at
the Fringe Benefits and then Fringe Benefits reimbursements are, that's, I guess,
fringe ... fringe includes what exactly though, just so I get it clear?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you.
payments.

Typically, the largest cost in Fringe Benefits are the ERS, EUTF

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, right.
MR. BAZ: Those are, it's the majority of it. They also include, well, they included workman's
compensation payments, but that's being moved now and for '17 it'll be proposed as
being moved completely, as well as, well, so it also includes terminal pay, you know,
for when people retire, their vacation payouts, and different things like that. The, so
we have a few old retirees that we're paying directly that are not in the EUTF system,
minor kind of stuff like that. But the two biggest ones are EUTF and ERS. Also our
employer's portion of the Social Security and Medicare taxes, that kind of stuff as well,
that is covered under that Fringe Benefit cost. The Fringe Benefit reimbursements are
the money that's coming in from the special funds, so, Water, Wastewater, you know,
Solid Waste, all of that, comes back into the General Fund 'cause General Fund pays
the main bill and then the money gets reimbursed from those special funds.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Back to those particular departments?
MR. BAZ: Those particular departments, or those employees that are paid out of those
special funds, their fringe benefit costs are covered by those special funds. So it
comes back to the General Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, okay, thank you. So I guess you're just extracting out
the workman's comp, well part of it, as Mr. White stated, it doesn't cover the entire bill
but it's just gonna go towards workman's compensation.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, so what we, there was $1.5 million appropriated in the Fringe Benefit
Program
for
worker's
compensation.
We're
moving
that
to
the
Insurance/Self-Insurance Program. Yeah, so any additional costs will come out of the
Insurance and Self-Insurance Program.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Okay, thank. .. and that'll be just the set standard way
of doing this payment--
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MR. BAZ: From ...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --from-MR. BAZ: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --here on out?
MR. BAZ: From here on out, we're going to move it to the Insurance/Self-Insurance
Program. It makes sense. The auditors are, recommended that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We11 be making adjustments from, that we started last year with working
with Mr. Baz, especially those grant employees that the General Fund has been paying
benefits for, we're gonna stop that. We're gonna make sure that the funds pay for
what they supposed to pay for and not impact General Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Very good. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: When you say you've, you have someone else to manage the,
I guess, the review of workers' comp, is that because the existing or prior have not
been following up with workers' comp cases and it's in limbo or what is the problem?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you. So, yeah, we've always, or as long as I've known, we've had a
third-party administrator. These are experts in, you know, the medical field and they
have, they're the ones that are working on these cases to make sure that they're, we're
paying appropriately, that the physical therapy or occupational therapy, whatever is
needed to get the person back to work, is happening appropriately. So the previous
third-party administrator just wasn't meeting our expectations and so that's why we
changed third-party administrators.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. Another question in regards to risk management,
having to do with safety. Do we have, or from that Risk Management to the various
departments, do we have actual safety programs that are presented to the employees
and is it something that the supervisors or management do their monthly or safety
programs? Whether it's, you know, in the office, making sure you close your file
drawers or simple things as that. Are there such programs that Risk Management
does to, for prevention purposes?
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MR. BAZ: Thank you. Mr. Chair? Member Crivello, yes, I am aware that they have a pretty
significant safety program. I don't know the exact details of it. Maybe we could have
them up here as, different time to discuss that. The, I know they do like, they just had
a defensive driving class recently that a couple of employees that I know were going to.
So, you know, it's, they do it on a regular basis. We have, you know, CPR, first aid,
that kind of stuff, as well as safety classes. There are some departments that have,
you know, dedicated safety officers so that, you know, Highways, you know, that's a
major one, that we want to make sure that people are safe in. So, and they do have
safety programs. But, yeah, more details we could get from Risk Management
themselves.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair, I think that would be good for us to have that kind of
information as to what type of safety programs are required to be presented to the
employees.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we11 send a request for that information, Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You have that, Jordan? Okay, thank you. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No questions, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, anything else, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, nothing at this time. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any, unless request, Members, questions on this request before
you regarding Countywide Costs?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Recommendation?
CHAIR HOKAMA: The Chair is open to motion to send to Council for passage on first reading
to be ordered for print A Bill for an Ordinance Amending the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget
for the County of Maui as it Pertains to the Department of Finance, Countywide Costs.
Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Victorino. Members, any further
discussion on the motion before you? With none, all in favor of the motion, please say
"aye."
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COUNCILMEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed say "no." Motion passes, seven "ayes," two excused, Mr. Carroll
and Ms. Baisa.

AYES:

Chair
Hokama,
Vice-Chair
White,
and
Councilmembers
Cochran,
Couch,
Crivello,
Guzman, and Victorino.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

VOTE:

EXC.:

Councilmembers Baisa and Carroll.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

FIRST READING of bill by C.R.

CHAIR HOKAMA:
Does the Department need any time to set up anything for your
component, Director? No? Okay, well, come on down, the price is right.

ITEM 13(1):

AFFORDABLE HOUSING FUND PROGRAM ANNUAL PLAN
(FISCAL YEAR 2016 (JULY 1, 2015 TO JUNE 30, 2016))
(CC 15-274)

CHAIR HOKAMA: May I direct you, Members, to 13(1). This is the Affordable Housing Fund
Program Annual Plan for the Fiscal Year 2016, which runs from July 1st of 2015 to
June 30th of 2016. We have a communication, 15-274, from Mr. Baz, Budget Director,
where he has transmitted the 2015 Affordable Housing Fund Annual Plan and
proposed amendments. A Bill for an Ordinance Amending Appendix A, Schedule of
Revolving/ Special Funds for Fiscal Year 20 16, Affordable Housing Fund, 2015 Hawaii
Housing Planning Study. And part of the bill requests adding a $120,000 proviso to
the Affordable Housing Fund for the Housing Planning Study for the County of Maui,
2015. So this morning we have Director Reimann with Mr. Baz. Mr. Baz, any opening
comments you wish to share?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. So along with the Affordable Housing Plan for 2015,
separate budget amendments were transmitted for each of the projects. One of the
items that is requested is, as you mentioned, a funding of a Hawaii Housing Planning
Study to be conducted by SMS Research for the County of Maui. And the details of
the planning study, Director Reimann can present. This, from my understanding, will
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allow us to get a better understanding of the need of housing in Maui County and then
how the Affordable Housing Fund can apply to the use, you know, so the uses of it can
apply to fulfill the needs that are required. So, Ms. Reimann?
MS. REIMANN: Thank you, Chair, Members of the Committee. Aloha, my name is
Carol Reimann. I'm the Director of Housing and Human Concerns. I handed out a
sheet of paper that details the plan in front of you. So, basically, the Hawaii Housing
Planning Study is conducted every three to five years and is one of the several critical
data sources that's used for both short and long-term planning for the Housing
Division. The data is used extensively in our five-year Consolidated Plan, our Annual
Action Plan, both of which are required by HUD, and is used to help justify the
County's need for Federal funding. The information is critical for justifying the use of
funds on specific projects, such as Kulamalu and Kahawai, and other housing projects
supported by Federal funding. Elements from this document are also used in our Fair
Housing Office and the study is often used by developers and nonprofits when they
apply for State and Federal funds, all of which brings additional funds into Maui
County for housing. The Hawaii Housing Planning Study will also provide information
on the current fair-market rents for Maui County. Determined by HUD, fair-market
rents are primarily used to determine payment standards amounts for the HUD
Housing Choice Voucher Program, also known as Section 8. Specifically for our
Housing Division on Maui, we are hoping that the information in this study will
provide justification to increase the maximum rents paid through our Section 8
program. Because of our current rental housing shortage, finding affordable units has
been challenging for Section 8 participants. This study has the potential to help
Section 8 voucher holders find and keep units. So for this current study, the 2015
Hawaii Housing Planning Study, HHFDC is the lead agency but there are many other
participants in this study.
They include the Homeless Programs Office of the
Department of Human Services, Benefits, Employment and Support Services Division,
the Office of Hawaiian Affairs, the City and County of Honolulu, the County of Hawaii,
the County of Kauai, and, of course, Maui County. There are four major tasks of the
study. The first is to gather, analyze data on the housing market, including housing
conditions, demographic and economic characteristics of Hawaii's household, the
supply of housing in the short run and long run, and demand for housing in the short
run by specific geographic areas, income groups and native Hawaiian status, project
housing needs by county and statewide by HUD income groups, elderly households,
person with special housing needs and native Hawaiian status. It also provides an
inventory of housing stock by county and state, including government-assisted
housing and housing units for military personnel on or off military bases. And the last
item is it gathers and analyzes historic and current information on for-sale and rental
housing by county and state. The last study was in 2011.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
comment, Director?

Do you have additional staff resources that wish to share

MS. REIMANN: No, we're good.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Anybody wants to say anything?
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MS. REIMANN: Anybody? No, we're good-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, good.
MS. REIMANN: --unless there's specific questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. No, I just wanted to let your resources be able to share whatever
information they may have had. Ms. Crivello, you have any questions for the Director
at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No. Thank you very much for preparing this report for us to
consider your amendment. I support your processes that you try to attain, I guess,
justification for what we need in regards to meeting the housing needs for Maui
County. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. White, questions?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: This just brings up a question in my mind and I'm not sure whether
Ms. Reimann has the answer but, what were the main findings of 2011 study and
what have we done to address them?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MS. REIMANN: Thank you for your question. We can get that information for you. We don't
have them at our fingertips right now.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I didn't figure you necessarily have that with you but that'd be
great. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we1l forward that request, Mr. White, for you.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, you got it? Thank you. Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I'm okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
that's it.

My only question was asked by Mr. White, so thank you,

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and thank you, Ms. Reimann, for your
comments. One thing I did notice, it's come out before in Ms. Crivello's Committee, is
that we really need affordable rentals as well as affordable housing and I noticed that
of the nine projects that were submitted, a few of them were large, affordable rentals,
specifically the Kenolio Apartments Project. Just curious why, you know, of the nine,
the four that didn't get chosen, didn't get chosen? Especially since some of them are
affordable rentals.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director, you or your representative? Buddy, why don't you join us.
MS. REIMANN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Bring the chair up.
MS. REIMANN: Chair, I actually have a summary of the Affordable Housing Plan, if you don't
mind if I read the summary so that everybody knows what the projects were and what
they entailed?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Excuse me, what is the request, Director?
MS. REIMANN: I have a write up if you would like me to read it to the Councilmembers -CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
MS. REIMANN: --about the affordable housing allotments.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: If it11 help answer the question is why some, why the four that
didn't get selected, didn't get selected.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Introduce yourself please.
MR. ALMEIDA: Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Committee members. My name is
Buddy Almeida.
I'm the Housing Administrator for the Housing Division.
The
Affordable Housing Fund, if Carol does get a chance to go through it, we just did a
brief summary of how the process works. Basically, the applications are scored by a
three-team committee that was put together to review and analyze each of the
proposals.
What we did was we averaged out the scoring for all nine of the
applications and, upon review, were comfortable with the scoring and so we
recommended the top five be recommended for funding in this fiscal year.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, so it was some sort of scoring mechanism?
MR. ALMEIDA: Yes, that's correct. There's a standard scoring criteria that was established
by former Director Ridao when the fund was established and we -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. ALMEIDA: --follow that model every year.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It'd be interesting, maybe in, if we can bring this up in the
HHT Committee as to what those, that criteria are because things are changing,
especially with the homeless issue and the lack of affordable rentals, the severe lack of
affordable rentals. We may need to shift our focus for a little while towards that. I,
you know, that depends on what the Committee would come up with but I know from
our discussions, we've always been talking about more affordable rentals at this point
as opposed to affordable homes, which become not affordable after. As you see some
of these, after ten years, they're not affordable anymore, so.
MR. ALMEIDA: That's a very good recommendation. We'd be more than willing to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So, Mr. Chair, maybe as a comment to, or a request to
Ms. Crivello's Committee, to look at that criteria, if at all possible. Can we do that as a
formal request? Or would you rather I do it from my office?
CHAIR HOKAMA: We can send it from Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: It11 still need to go through Council for the
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sure.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --subject to be referred to Ms. Crivello's Committee. So we're gonna need
to work with Mr. White, but we can initiate, and do it sooner than later.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Chair. I note here that part of the Housing
Planning Study includes the Office of Hawaiian Affairs and then further down, for the
major task of the study, it's mentioned, income group and Native Hawaiian status. I
wonder why Department of Hawaiian Home Lands is not included in this study
because they have land base. There's a conversation that can be had with possible
rentals, affordable rentals, or rentals as a whole, and also acceptance of HUD monies
if another entity manages the rentals instead of Department of Hawaiian Home Lands.
So my question is, is there a reason why they're not included on this list, more so than
the Office of Hawaiian Affairs? Or, I see Office of Hawaiian Affairs possibly being part
of maybe some funding, but the actual entity, when it comes to Native Hawaiians, to
provide some sort of housing, whether it's affordable homes or affordable rentals. I
think if there is any entity that should be on the table is Department of Hawaiian
Home Lands. If there's any been, there's been any kind of consideration from your
Department with that?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director? Mr. Almeida?
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MR. ALMEIDA: Thank you, Member Crivello, for that question. Chair, with regards to the
study, Housing Specialist, Linda Munsell, has been working with the other counties
and the State on this process. I have the back up for the Affordable Housing Fund
Plan so, with your approval, I'd like to call Linda down and she can answer that
question directly.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Sure. Yeah, please come down. Hi, thanks for joining us. So if you'd just
introduce yourself and respond to the question please.
MS. MUNSELL: Good morning, Chair. I'm Linda Munsell. I'm with the Housing Division.
I'm a Housing Specialist for the Housing Division.
The question about the
Hawaiian ... can you ask the, tell me the question again?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I'm just concerned or question why isn't Department of
Hawaiian Homes listed? They have the land base and it is for them to provide housing
and, as opposed to Office of Hawaiian Affairs, and you also have where the demand for
housing, where you include Native Hawaiian. So that's why I'm wondering why they
are not listed as part of this study or plan.
MS. MUNSELL: Chair? The, HHFDC is the coordinator for this study itself and the
Department of Hawaiian Affairs asked to be included in it. In the past, they haven't
necessarily participated. They asked specifically if they could have, join in the study,
to include a part having to do specifically with Native Hawaiians. So this is, that's a
new element. If Department of Hawaiian Home Lands had asked to be included, they
might've also, and, again, they might've, being, providing some of the funding for this.
I'm not exactly positive. But there are a number of organizations who are participating
because it's much easier for us all to gather together to get the information at one
time. But that specific question having to do with Native Hawaiians was asked by that
department and that's why they're included.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I certainly appreciate the extension, I guess, from the Office
of Hawaiian Affairs, and more power to the Native Hawaiian, but, you know, if we are
asking the HHFDC for their oversight for this study, I would hope we would ask them
to consider including the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands. Again, they build
homes, they have the land base, and their kuleana is directly to the Native Hawaiians
and providing homes, I guess. So, and the conversation has sort of started, at least
I've had some conversation, that there are many possibilities that can work out with
the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands in partnership with us here in the County.
Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Couch, you had a question?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: .. .(inaudible) ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. White, any questions?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, thank you, Chair. You know, Mr. Couch brings up a good
question regarding the, you know, the need for rentals and I think it would be
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interesting for us to know what the amount requested was for the four groups that
were turned down. Do you have that information?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, just so you know, Members, I chose not to post the specific nine
proposals. We're only on the study today, okay. We're not going to discuss each
individual project. That has not been posted. Only the study has been posted.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you for that clarification.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. The Chair will bring up the respective proposals at another date.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So we will not be making any decision on funding on any of the nine
proposals that, from the Department. That is not on the discussion of today's
meeting. It's the study only, what the past studies have been able to do or not do,
current request for the $100-plus thousand and what we expect from this study or
what we expect the State to do from this study. So if you would please adjust the
parameters of questions and discussion please? Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, 111 hold that question for another time but I would appreciate it
if they'll come prepared to answer that and I would also like their sense of what the
demand or the need is for senior rentals like Hale Mahaolu versus all other rentals
because I think, you know, we're all aware that overall Maui has a very severe rental
shortage. So I think it, you know, obviously this study may help identify what that
need is more specifically but I'd like to have them come prepared next, at the next
meeting, to discuss what it is that we can look forward to.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That's fair, Mr. White. And we'll make contact with the Department to
ensure that they bring the appropriate information forward.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So let me ask a few questions so the Committee can understand on why I
posted just the study.
And, again, Members, we do have information on the
2013 plan, 2014 plan. And, of course, they coming up with their 2015 plan and, like
Mr. Couch, who just zips it on his handheld devices, this is under Maui County Code
3.35.080. We have it in Code, okay. It lists five components of the plan. So to the
Department, my understanding in our, the Staff and my review of this plan, it's
missing four, at least three components. One, line item for Administrative Expenses.
Does, we are, I may have missed, but I haven't seen a timeline for the housing study,
as well as a description of the study and how it will result in housing. And so we are,
forwarded those three concerns of mine to the Department and, Director, are you able
to give us some comment this morning on those areas?
MS. REIMANN: Let's see, in regards to the study resulting in housing, this study is critical
for us to get our Federal funding for HUD monies and for HOME funds, which
essentially brings housing to Maui County.

- 23-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

December 15, 2015

CHAIR HOKAMA: So that's the answer, the result in housing is getting Federal funds?
MS. REIMANN: Yes, Federal funds helps us to build homes on Maui.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, in my 20 years sitting around here-MS. REIMANN: It also ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --that's not a good answer.
MS. REIMANN: You want to answer that?
MS. MUNSELL: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair ...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: She wanted to address you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Department.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Department.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department?
MS. MUNSELL: Chair? You had, the 2015 study, obviously we need to wait until the data is
actually available for our use but the 2011 study was used extensively in my
justification to receive the $2.4 million that we are now using for the Kulamalu Project.
It's also the study that we would've used when we are writing proposals for our
projects. So, I mean, I don't have extensive history on how the study has been used in
the past but I do know that the 2011 study was critical. We would not have received
those funds if it had not been for that study.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Can you tell us how many units have been built and type of units?
MS. MUNSELL: Based on?
CHAIR HOKAMA: On the study.
MS. MUNSELL: That study? No, I'm sorry, but I can get that information for you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We'll request that so we get a sense of the success or failure of this
program and this studies.
MS. MUNSELL: And, sir?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department?
MS. MUNSELL: I also know that when Hale Mahaolu and other nonprofits and developers
are proposing projects and asking for funding from the Federal government, they often
cite these same studies that I use when I go to the State or to the Feds for funding.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so if, we'll look forward to those numbers, 'cause I think what the
community communicates to us is they want to see constructed units. They don't
want to hear plans, they don't want to hear studies, they don't want to, they want to
see housing, okay, and every district has a housing component issue. I don't care
which district you look at of the nine of us, we all have a housing issue of various
magnitudes, so. We all can give you our stories. I can give you Lanai's really well. So
with that, I would say, is there a reason why you folks did not turn in one
Administrative Expense listing? That's Subsection E of the Code.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you. I did not include an amendment to Appendix A for the Administrative
Expenses because it's already in there, right. So the $70,000 proviso for use of the
funds for Administrative Expenses is already existing in there. I haven't gotten an
indication from the Department of what they're going to be using the $70,000 for but
that's the reason why there's no amendments to the Appendix A for inclusion of that,
is 'cause it's already listed in there.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I would recommend you guys make reference to the component of
the budget. Mr. White, further questions?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No further questions on the study. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I'm okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'm fine. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No. You, Chair, this is, Department is submitting this as a
proviso or you put this in?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: They are submitting this request to us.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: They are? Oh, okay. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You okay?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes, Mr. Chair, you mentioned a section of the Code that this is
required under. Can you read that back _ _ ?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Three point three five-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Three five, okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --point zero eight zero.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Under the heading, Affordable Housing Fund Annual Plan. That's the title
within the Code.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
comments?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO:
Chair.

No.

Ms. Crivello, subject Chair, any other questions or

Thank you for being here, Department.

Thank you,

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I am gonna recommend that we send to Council a recommendation
of passage on first reading, order to print, A Bill for an Ordinance Amending Appendix
A, Fiscal Year 2016 Budget for County of Maui as it Pertains to Part II, Special
Purpose Revenues- Schedule Of Revolving/Special Funds for Fiscal Year 2016,
Affordable Housing Fund, 2015 Hawaii Housing Planning Study. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So moved, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. I have a motion by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Victorino.
Again, Members, this is adding a proviso, okay. We're not adding more money now.
We're adding a proviso to money earmarking $120,000 for the 2015 Hawaii Housing
Planning Study for the County of Maui. Oh, I have a quick question. Since you guys
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brought up this, does this assist you with Section 8 also, the study? Is the Feds
helping to pay for this, since it's Section 8 Program and Section 8 money?
MS. MUNSELL: Chair, the idea is by adding this in, we could justify getting more money
from them. That's the intent of this. Right now, the fair-market rents are provided to
us by HUD and we can choose to accept those fair-market rents or we can choose to
do our own study, which, hopefully, and there's no guarantee, hopefully will show that
our fair-market rents on Maui, and that appears to be the case from what we've seen,
are much higher than the fair-market rents that HUD currently provides us. And so
the idea is that if the study shows, we would be able to go back to HUD and request a
higher payment standard and so our Section 8 folks would have a easier time finding
rents and, again, it would bring money here.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So we get more than the 120,000 back?
MS. MUNSELL: Pardon? I'm not positive in the Section 8 rents. Obviously, the Section 8
fair-market rents aren't going to be the whole 120,000, but without this kind of a
study, we can't justify, we have a much, much more difficult time justifying, applying
and receiving not only the Section 8 funds but the HOME funds, and CDBG also relies
on some of this information as well for, you know, when they're trying to justify the
use of funds for particular kinds of projects. You know, as I said, the 2011 study,
which we had participated in, if it hadn't been for that, I would not have had the data
that allowed me to justify use of the 2.4 million for HOME and so, you know, $120,000
every 3 or 5 years, that brings in, you know, that kind of money to the County, not
only through the HOME Program but also for Section 8. I think that's a good
investment. I understand your questions and certainly we need to come to you
prepared to give you that kind of information, but I think it's a very good investment.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments. We ... any questions for ... Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, just, that brings up the question. It was mentioned that HHFDC
is the lead in the study. How much are they paying?
MS. MUNSELL: Oh, boy, yeah, we're just a small part of this. HHFDC is paying, each of the
counties is kicking in, the Department of Hawaiian Affairs, all of those organizations
that the Director had mentioned previously as a participant, is also kicking money in.
I can give you the total cost for the study. The 120,000 is only the County of Maui
portion.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: What is the total?
MS. MUNSELL: Oh, or I can give you a total if I had a calculator.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Just give us a estimate.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Or just what the State entities are putting into it.
MS. MUNSELL: Oh, I see. The total cost is $565,000, total.
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Five hundred fifty-five thousand?
MS. MUNSELL: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: See if the four counties-VICE-CHAIR WHITE: If you ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --share the equal amount-VICE-CHAIR WHITE: If the four counties ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --that's 480, right there from the counties.
MS. MUNSELL: No, it's actually not shared equally. We've asked them to do two additional
things that other counties might not have asked. I mean, we asked about the
fair-market rents specifically 'cause we were concerned for our Section 8 people and
the fact that they're having such difficult time finding rentals and landlords who are
willing to accept our payment standard. And then the second thing we also asked
them to look at is the effect of off-island purchasers of our homes here and the effect
that that has on our housing stock and the ability for our local people to find housing.
So we've asked them to do a couple of extra things. So normally, I think, probably, the
study would be, you know, more in the range of, you know, 80,000 or $85,000 if we
had not asked them to do those additional elements for us.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, that makes some sense but at the same time, I'm a little
bothered, Chair, that the, it seems like the State is paying about the same level of
money that each of the counties is paying and that doesn't quite make sense to me.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Leialii.

I don't know what the State can show as providing housing.

Look at

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm still looking at it 20 years later, State project, so.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Do you have the detail on what the other three counties are paying?
MS. MUNSELL: Yes. Kauai is paying $70,000, little more than $70,000. Honolulu is paying
about $76,000. Our core request without the additives was going to be $87,000. Part
of that is because we have three islands, rather than one, in our County. OHA's
part ...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And what is the Big Island paying?
MS. MUNSELL: Big Island is paying, it looks like $167,000.
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: What would their core costs be? It sounds like they're adding ...
MS. MUNSELL: Yeah. I'm not positive from this.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, Director, when she looking for that response to Mr. White's question,
why don't we just do our own study? Why we doing this with everybody else if you
have special needs just for our County?
MS. MUNSELL: It is less expensive to group together to do this. We have done other studies
in the past. And the one I can think of specifically had to do with the analysis of
impediments, which is something that we would do for our Fair Housing Office, and in
the past, the counties and the State had grouped together to do that study. The next
time after that, the County of Maui contracted that ourselves and it cost nearly what
the study for the entire State cost just to have us do our own. And part of that has to
do with mobilization of the organization. And in addition to having the State work
with us, we know that the study is very consistent from year, from study to study,
which is important when we're looking at trends in housing.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Who has control of that information? The State entity or us?
MS. MUNSELL: We, the basic study is proposed by the State, but we all have to approve
what the questions are and make sure that it actually is going to address the needs of
each of the entities that are involved.
CHAIR HOKAMA: In the special request from this County?
MS. MUNSELL: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You control that or does the State control that?
MS. MUNSELL: We reviewed that. The fair-market rents actually have to be, the way that
those questions are phrased must be approved by HUD prior to the study actually
being done. SMS worked with us and worked with HUD in order to get that wording
and get that survey designed correctly so that they would accept it when it was
finished. But, yeah, that's something that we control. And, again, Wayde would've
been more involved in it than I am. I've only picked this up, you know, in the later
part of it, but that is the information, that is the correspondence that I have seen.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Are you part of the selection of the vendor?
MS. MUNSELL: The State went through the procurement process. They actually had a
number of people who had given proposals and SMS was the one who was selected in
the end.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White, any further questions?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No, I'm just a little concerned that we may be paying for a little more
than we need but I'm okay.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Members, any further ... Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And HHFDC, as you stated, you know,
your frustrations, I, too, have them especially in West Maui in regards to current
housing that they have built. Poor management and this other area in Lahaina, they
finally, as old as I am, I have never seen that place being renovated. They finally, I
mean, there are places is condemned in that housing units. And so, just, recently I
drive by and whoa, now there's a sign going up, renovations. Well, it is way about
time. So, you know, Chair, I understand, we can do our own and we can see on a
day-to-day basis the needs that we, you know, have in our own perspective [sic]
communities but, you know, if this Department feels they need to chime in and jump
in on this bigger-picture study to help assist us in our, you know, community needs,
but I, yeah, not 100 percent totally bought into this 'cause of the lead, I guess, agency
involved here, 'cause 111 tell ya, it's been nothing but trouble in my district. And,
unfortunately, my State people, they're coming to me, the County, I don't have any
oversight on this, but I've had to make inroads to have some type of, you know, work
being done to bring the quality of life to this community 'cause it's been very difficult.
So hopefully we can get some good news out of this to help assisting in getting some,
yeah, shelter for people. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Anyone else? Okay. I think we've, the Department has a
sense of our frustration with the housing issue. So, thank you very much. There
is ... yes, Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Sorry, Chair, but could we request from the Department a listing of
what the other counties have asked for to be provided in the Study and what it is the
State's, you know, and how much each of the counties is paying and what the State is
paying?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we'll forward that request to -VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --the Department. Okay. We got it. Okay, we have a motion before you,
Members, which is to add the language to earmark that 120,000 for the study. No
further discussion, all in favor of the motion, please say "aye."
COUNCILMEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oppose say "no." Motion passes with seven ayes and two excused.
VOTE:

AYES:

Chair
Hokama,
Vice-Chair
White,
and
Councilmembers
Cochran,
Couch,
Crivello,
Guzman, and Victorino.

NOES:

None.
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ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.
Councilmembers Baisa and Carroll.

EXC.:
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

FIRST READING of bill by C.R.

CHAIR HOKAMA: We11 take a short break and then take up BF-70. So we11 be in recess 'til
10:30. . . . (gavel) . ..
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

ITEM 70:

10:21 a.m.
10:37 a.m.

DISPARITY OF REAL PROPERTY ASSESSMENTS FOR
AGRICULTURAL VERSUS NON-AGRICULTURAL LANDS
(CC 11-227)

CHAIR HOKAMA: .. . (gavel). . . We shall return to order, Members. We have one last item
for today's Committee, and that is BF-70. So as we start today's discussion on this
item, the Chair intends to have no decision making on this. We11 continue to work on
this, but I will be eventually asking, during the term, for a decision on dedication. It is
your Chair's sense at this time that, 'cause I've received it, I'm sure you have, that
from the non-agriculture component of the tax base, there is great support for
dedication, from the non-agriculture tax base. From the agriculture tax base, I would
say it is, some think it's good, some think it's bad. And, again, we shall have that
discussion. Again, no decision today, but I will say that it is, as your Chair, it is my
intent during this upcoming Budget session to look at reducing the $30 million
subsidy and my target is cutting it in half. So one of the options will be dedication as
a way to avoid certain types of taxation that a property owner may choose to
voluntarily enter into or not. So part of this discussion is to prepare for Budget
session and, again, reducing the subsidy for agriculture. I'm also looking at finding
ways ... one of the things that I can tell you that I would ask all of us to work with and
will ask the agriculture sector is, I would like to come up with only one definition for
agriculture and a requirement for only one agriculture plan. I cannot see us having
four departments with four definitions and each one gotta come up with their own
version of an ag plan. That drives me crazy, and that drives the agricultural people
crazy, okay. We gotta come up with one definition and one plan, and I am leaning to
use the Federal definition, okay. And I am not looking at giving any consideration to
subsistence farming. This is about active commercial and that's what I'm gonna go
and protect. And, again, is, someone said earlier, I am looking at a Countywide policy.
I'm not going to be crafting legislation for you, through you for individuals. This is
about the whole sector and the whole County, what is good for the County of Maui,
okay. Any questions to where the Chair wants to go with this? The other issue, I can
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say, besides trying to get only one definition and one plan, is I want to reach
uniformity and fairness and we only gonna view home sites in one way, regardless of
zoning. You in Residential, Agriculture, home site is home site, period. It will be, I'm
going to make it so we view it in only one way for consistency and fairness in
application. I don't think it's fair to put Mr. Agsalog's people in a position that they
need to make policy decisions on what they felt was Council's intent. I think we
should make it very black and white and let our people make a clear-cut decisions
based on those factors, not their, what they feel is an opinion, or have them interpret
the policy of Council. So that's where I am gonna drive this 70 to. Deal with home
sites, one definition, one plan, and I don't have a problem making it easier to
determine whether or not it's true ag or not. If it's a set dollar amount for gross sales
or net sales, so be it. Any questions for the Chair at this time? Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair, I don't have a question, I just have a comment on the
two matters. First of all, the ag inspector bill that's in EAR-31. It's still, it's pending
review via Corp. Counsel, and also EAR-14, which is the unified definition of
agriculture, is also pending revisions. And I planned on trying to get to it at the end of
this year but I have the Parks and Recreation ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I know, you have a big item coming up, Chairman. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, and I wanted to get that done.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I understand.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: And for sure, Chair, we will be handling those two items. I'm
looking at February.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We will work with you, Mr. Guzman. And, again, we understand that
there are some, a need of coordination between various subject matter committees.
And, so, you know, I recognize and respect your Committee's purview over certain
areas of this subject and I will look for your guidance and your recommendations
through your Committee on how to approach. I'm just preparing us from a taxation
policy standpoint and what I believe, for the long term, is to the health of this County's
agricultural program, is the dedication. So from the Budget standpoint, I making it go
forward because I want to make sure everybody is clear on where I want to go and
have enough time to have the type of community discussion and have them respond to
what they feel is fair, not fair, overboard, status quo is good enough, let it go, we like
subsidies, whatever it be. We'll have the discussion. But for me, looking at all the
other departments' requests for major CIP, including now the transit component and
whatnot, we're gonna need to start laying the foundation of how we gonna address
major, large CIP projects for the whole County.
So I'm looking at the Water
Department projects. I'm looking at Wastewater projects. I'm looking at Public Works
and their transportation projects. We're gonna need to line up a lot of money for the
long-term needs of this County and what will be acceptable levels of debt service. So,
for me, we know it's gonna come, Members, and so my thing is we need to show that
we're being responsible in setting the County's fiscal situation well and affordable so
that it won't impact us being able to provide daily operational services, 'cause I don't
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want to be like our sister counties that laying off police and enforcement people 'cause
they don't have cash, and that's what they doing, laying off enforcement and
emergency personnel, some counties. So I don't feel we can, we'll be there, but, again,
just doing my part to prepare us from the financial standpoint, Mr. Guzman. Thank
you. With that, I'm gonna ask Mr. Agsalog, as the Director of Finance, if he, at this
time, has any opening comments he wishes to share with the Committee regarding
BF-70?
MR. AGSALOG: Good morning, Mr. Chair and members of the Committee. And I just want
to thank you for looking into this again and my support as far as staffing, whenever
you're ready to look into this item again, Mr. Chair, is still the same. I have provided
in the past through our Real Property Assessments technical staff, to work with you
because if we spend the time to get a great rules that we can implement, we might
save some in the appeal process and we probably don't have to stay on the phone
much, much more than what we do now to explain to the community the way that we
do. So, again, Mr. Chair, my offer at that time is to provide you technical staff
whenever you have the meeting and also I just want to ask that, you know, during this
time and the beginning of the year is very, very busy for assessments. So I hope you
guys keep that in mind when you scheduling the meeting and, so that we can staff you
properly. As far as also I have just realized now that one request from the Vice-Chair
of the Council, Mr. Chair, that I haven't reviewed the answers for it. So for that, I
apologize for that because it's really a busy time for us but we are working to provide
you information so that you can make the proper decision. But, again, even with the
training that we doing today, I pulled out our Administrator to be here so that he can
bring to our team there the importance of working with you to, for you to provide us
the tools that we need, Mr. Chair. So, again, our support as part of the administration
to get this BF-70 going again, it's still there, Mr. Chair. And I will answer anything
that you might have with regards to administration but for technical one, the
Administrator is here to answer those questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you so much, Director. We appreciate your presence and
cooperation on this subject. Mr. Teruya, any things at this specific time you wish to
share with us?
MR. TERUYA: Thank you, Chair and Councilmembers. Nothing at this time, Chairman. I
will answer any questions that you guys have.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Yeah, we'll go right down the line. Mr. Guzman, I'll start with you.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you, Chair. I did send you, I CC'd you a copy of
my letter that I sent RPT, and as well as the Director of-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --Finance-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, we have that.
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --dated November 6. This is the data that was collected by
the Ag Working Group, in conjunction with Maggie Stumpp, who is a Ph.D. in
economics, and I believe that her testimony also -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, we received that.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --included her, yeah, her background. But I, we were trying
to come up with different alternatives and the data that was provided would've
suggested other alternatives or to enhance the existing bill and so we were waiting for
the written response on the data computation from the Department. And apparently
they may have gotten it done but it was never transmitted but we are still awaiting for
that additional data to verify, or at least, if these altemative solutions would actually
benefit the County. So I believe the Members have a copy of the letter that I sent to
Finance-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --as well as the data provided to the Members. So we'll just
await for that responses from the Department.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I will await the Department's response to you in your Committee,
Mr. Guzman, and, you know, if you choose to post it and have discussion or you want
us to, we will work with you and your Committee to address it on a timely manner.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
time? I'm sorry.

I was gonna, let me see, Mr. Victorino, a question at this

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, Chair. I, there's so much to review here, but I
understand your premise and where we're trying to work towards, and I agree with
you wholeheartedly, one definition for ag, one definition for a farm plan, really has
been long overdue. I mean, we have the four departments, Water, RPT, Planning
and ... I forgot the fourth department.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You mean for State, the State ...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, yeah, Land Use, yeah, having all their versions of all
these farm plans, and makes it very difficult to know what a farm is and the other
aspect is the inspectors. I agree wholeheartedly to get back inspectors who know what
a farm is. I think that's something that has been lacking for a long time. And I not
putting the onus on RPT or Water, they're not equipped for that, that's not their
responsibility. We should have someone who can say, this is a farm, it follows all the
criteria that we set forth and then RPT, Water and the rest will just follow suit and
say, okay, it's done, and not have so many men and women running around trying to
evaluate and saying this is a farm or not a farm. So I wholeheartedly agree with you,
you know, I had my version sitting somewhere in limbo too, but, you know, it followed
the same lines as yours in BF -70, so I'm ready to see what we can come with and I
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think the discussion will be healthy and we11 be able to achieve, especially with the Ag
Working Group, you know, looking at their recommendations. I think that's going to
be real pivotal also. So, thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair, and thank you for bringing this. Chair,
the other handout, though, came from where?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That is from RPT and once we go through this initial opening round of
potential questions or some comment, I'm gonna ask Mr. Teruya -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --for an example on home site fairness.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you. And, Chair, in your opening comments,
you were stating that one of your intents is to cut down the subsidy to ag from 30 mil
in half down to 15 mil, obviously, sorta, around there. And that's, sounds like a tall
order, and I think you're figuring by addressing bill 70 and things we work through,
will get you to that number or help assist and in what way?
CHAIR HOKAMA: It11 be one of the tools that a property owner can consider. And, again,
everything will be voluntary. We will not mandate you have to dedicate. We will not
mandate you need to do it this way or that way. We will craft policy that we believe is
the fairest for all taxpayers, including the ag component, and what is fair.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: But I can tell you, since we've made the general community aware of this
subsidy, I've had a lot of comments about the subsidy.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
through this.

Okay.

Alright, Chair, well, looking forward to working

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And I agree, this is something we have
to deal with because there is a lot of revenue that we are losing to people who are not
doing farming, even if it is just subsistence. And I agree with you on the, that point as
well. So I'm looking forward to a solution that fits both sides. I know you mentioned
that you got everybody in the community who aren't part of the ag that are all
supporters of this and some who are part of ag ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: I would say, those that are not from the agriculture, there's a large
number that support it, not all -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right, right. So ...
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CHAIR HOKAMA: --support dedication, okay, 'cause there's still a group that doesn't
understand dedication either.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct. So I would love to hear from Mr. Guzman's working
group and the folks here because they seem to have come up with some solutions, at
least that's what they've said in testimony so. Whether or not it's today, we definitely
have to hear from the Department, RPT. We all know that we're losing out and we all
know the inequities. We just have to figure out how to fix 'em and, whether or not this
bill is the way to go or some sort of hybrid of this bill and whatever the Ag Working
Group came up with, something has to be done. And I appreciate you bringing it up
and lets, hopefully we have the conversation and, ultimately, I think we'll end up with,
like we have in Business, we have Bl, B2, B3. I have a feeling we're gonna have Al,
A2, A3 and only A3 gets the valuation or something like that. So I'm seeing that
there's gonna be tears as well. Thanks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, that's why, the key is to have good discussion, good, to take the time
to mitigate unintended consequences. But at least I can say this Council, this County
is taking its responsibility regarding agriculture, as stated in the State Constitution,
very seriously. And so, you know, I'm happy that we're doing this and, Members, you
gotta understand that in '65, when the State went through the Department of Ag and
the university did ag values, agriculture was the kingpin. It wasn't tourism. Ag was
the big generator of revenue in this State, different times, different status. We were a
wholly, totally different community, for those of us that were there. So, interesting
comments and, again, I don't disagree, we need to update values and come to terms.
So that's some of the things that we'll be also asking Mr. Teruya and Finance for
comments. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Chair. I think there's a lot for us to digest
throughout this whole so-called disparity and a lot of it I'd like to, I guess, rely on the
Department also to come up with their analysis in regards to this. But when we talk
about defining ag, the State also had a process for big land, large landowners to
identify the Important Ag Lands. So there's gotta be some sort of, I think, definition as
to how they come up to identify Important Ag Lands. The thing, too, that sort of is the
consideration, is when I hear market value versus the viability of ag lands. You know,
if you, if one decided to purchase ag land, what are the intent? Is it turn it to market
value or is it to truly, how we understand agriculture to be, and supposingly [sic] so
define, to utilize it as one who cultivates or utilize the pasture or livestock or what
have you. As far as I can recall, there shouldn't be any confusion as to what is ag
lands. You either going farm the ag land, one way or the other, or you're going to
utilize it for livestock or however that component comes in. So I appreciate for us to
have the discussion and if it becomes as such that there is more than one home site
and what is it that landowner who has the ag land, what is the true intent and do we
need an ag inspector or do we have the technology, and, that can just, what is it,
drone, GPS, or what have you to identify the utilization of the Real Property Division to
do their own kind of identification if it's truly. There are some lands, I guess, in, that
carries over from generation to generation that identify it from the beginning of time as
ag land. So how do you take that into consideration also, as opposed to the new
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owners who want some sort of clarification from what is ag land? So, I guess, I look
for direction from the Department with your recommendations, Mr. Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Crivello. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. You know, I look forward to the discussion because
this is something that I've been concerned about for over 20 years. And I said it
before, when I purchased my parcel Upcountry, I think I paid somewhere in the
neighborhood of $400,000 for it. I got my first tax bill and it was valued at $8,800. So
I called the Tax Department, I said, you guys must have missed the sale and they said,
no, you're in ag and so you're good to go. Now this is a parcel with no fencing, no
nothing, but I was getting an $8,800 value. That was in 1992. Now, my market value
is 940,000 or thereabouts. My market, what I pay on the, on my land is a value of
$29,000. So if I go down the street to Makawao and take, and choose a house site the
same size as mine and I haven't done this for a while so I don't know what the current
values are, but it's somewhere in the neighborhood of $250,000. So my concern has
always been that a home site is a home site. It's in our rules that if you have an
agricultural parcel that is being used for something other than agriculture, such as a
home site, then that should be assessed at the value of a home site elsewhere. So
that's been in the rules since 1981. So one of the issues for me in putting it forward,
BF-70, was to fix that inequity at a minimum because I don't think it's fair for me to
be paying taxes on my land at a value of $29,000. It's just not right. So in my case, I
get the benefit of the Ag valuation and on top of that I get the homeowner exemption
and on top of that I get the Homeowner rate. So what I'm paying for my property is
similar to what somebody is paying in a 7,000-square-foot lot with a house that's
likely half the size of mine. That's not fair. I know that I'm not the only one. I know
there's lots of people, and I've, you know, I've given this Committee over the years, of a
large number of examples where the ag being done on the property is similar to the ag
that my wife does. She's got a bunch of animals that she loves dearly but she makes
no money off of them because she can't bear to see any of them go to market. So it's a
hobby for her and something that she gets great enjoyment out of and through her, I
enjoy it, but I make my living at a hotel and I make a living here. I don't make my
living off of farming so I don't deserve the kind of treatment that a farmer gets. So my,
I'm very excited about the direction you're going because I think we need to be taxing
the home sites at the true value, and what we do for the farmers for their farm, I'm
wide open. I'm open to dedication because I think that's gonna make people honest
about what they're doing. The honest, true farmers are gonna be happy to do that and
we need to make it as easy as possible, as Ms. Niles mentioned. But part of the
reason, I think, we need to provide a level of dedication, is that we have places and I11
just use Olowalu as an example, I don't know how many parcels are gonna, I didn't
count them recently, but I've just gone through, I think, around 14 or 15 parcels,
hundreds of acres, each of the parcels is paying minimum tax because of the Ag
valuation. So Ms. Cochran drives by there all the time. I drive by there a lot of the
time. I haven't seen a cow there in a long time. I haven't seen any active ag there in a
long time. So why should we not be asking people to provide a dedication, but if
they're going to develop that in some way, shape or form in the next five years, let 'em
dedicate for five years and pay the remainder in taxes or pay an appropriate level of
tax for a five-year dedication. If they're gonna dedicate it for ten years, then let's lower
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the amount of taxes they pay. And if they're gonna dedicate for 20 years, then I say
we leave 'em where they were, but we've got to provide some structure so that the Tax
Department knows what's fair and how to address the concerns that all of us have. I
also agree with you with respect to not making exemptions for subsistence farmers
because in my view, if you have the land to farm then you've got a benefit that far
exceeds what anyone living in Kahului or Wailuku or Makawao or Pukalani has
because they don't have the ability to be self-sustaining on a farm. And so if you're
generating farming activity and you're bartering or, you know, basically doing things
that support yourself off of that, but it's subsistence farming, I don't feel that that
rises to the level of the remainder of Maui providing you a subsidy. So I look forward
to further discussions on this. I know in checking through the, you know, the various
tax rules, there are a lot of farms that don't live where they farm. There are a lot of
ranchers that don't live where they ranch. So why should they be treated differently
or why should the people that get to live where they ranch and live where they farm be
given special dispensation? And the reason I bring that up, partly, is because my
daughter--I think most people know--my daughter is a rancher on the Big Island. I
see what she pays in taxes on her property. She ranches full-time. The Big Island, I
believe, I haven't looked at it recently, but I believe that the agricultural component on
the Big Island provides more tax revenue than any other sector of the tax rolls. And so
I, you know, I think you're headed in the right direction and I support it and I look
forward to people's perspectives coming in and testifying. But I know in past, Mr.
Couch, Mr. Victorino and myself have been pulling up people's properties as they're
testifying and often we find that somebody testifying, that they're harvesting this,
they're harvesting that, you know, harvesting a whole bunch of bananas, you pull up
the property and there's a tennis court and a clump of banana trees, but a clump is
not a farm. You know I have a clump of banana trees on Oahu that I love to go and
pick from but it's, you know, a clump gives you maybe a bunch of bananas each
month, every two weeks if you're really lucky, but that's not farming. So I look
forward to the discussion. I know this is a tough issue for a lot of us because there
are people who are benefiting significantly from what we are doing without farming
much, if at all. So I think it's time to have the discussion and I look forward to moving
forward. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Two things I will share with the Committee that I'm looking at
is one, again, under the Federal definition, there's a consideration of one way to define
agriculture for us. There's also to consider requiring a Schedule F to prove or qualify
for the benefits of our, whatever our agriculture _ _ will be at the end 'cause, if you
file Schedule F, there's documentation. And leases, you know, if it's leased, you know,
I'm looking at, that it needs to be a recorded lease, not a lease on pencil and paper
kind of transaction, but something that is recorded to the land as one of the
considerations of the new policy. And, again, I appreciate the concern for old families
that have farmed for generations and hundreds of years. So, you know, we can have
that discussion but at the end of the day, I'm looking at something that we can defend
that is fair and consistent in its application. To me that's the main test of my litmus,
is it has to be fair and consistent in its application. So at this time, one of the things
that I asked RPT to do, and because I have an issue with inequity in how we doing
home site assessments, I asked RPT if they could, be able to give us an example and,
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to show us how, why the discrepancy can be on what I consider similar home sites.
Mr. Teruya?
MR. TERUYA: Thank you, Chairman. On the handout that was given out, I believe the first
page, it starts with--okay good--today's date. It has, on the first page is the details as
far as valuation. On the second page is the pictometry imagery that we have in-house
so, but what I want to focus and just give you a general overview is, this is a 11.5 acre
lot, it has 1 acre of home site. The valuation of the land is $96,000. If you move to
Page 3, this is a half-acre site and the valuation of this land, and it's located across
the street, is 368,000. So all I'm saying is, this is half the home site of the parcel that
has farm land and its valuation is 368,000. And the reason for BF-70 is to address
these inequities for how you value a home site. How you value the rest is not the main
concern. The inequities that we find that is the most obvious is how we value the
home site. So if you look at the last page, that is the triangular piece of a half-acre
house lot right across the street of the 11.5 acres. Both properties have a home and a
cottage on it and the total valuation of those buildings are equal, very equal. I mean,
we're talking about 141,000 versus 156,000, okay. And the overall tax bill for the
11.5-acre site is $403.98 and the half-acre house site, house lot, is paying $895. So
without going into the details about how you value land and all these other things,
and even though I don't want to get down to taxes, but ultimately, it results in taxes,
is the inequity is very clear here and that is what we're trying to pass in BF-70. That
is one of the aims or the goals of the bill as it was crafted years and years ago. You
know, Warren's sitting back there, and I've known Warren for exactly 15 years, 'cause
I know we started in the first ag group in the year 2000. This has been three groups
that I've been working with and we're still not, haven't moved anywhere. It's very easy
for me, as an Administrator, to make an administrative decision to value them
different. That is the scope that Big Island went and then they had a public out roar.
So I believe there is inequities. How we're going to fix it, I'd prefer that we go through
this body and identify the ways to do it so that we, there's no unintended
consequences. So the example here is just to show you of the gross disparities that
we're having out there. I hope this is very clear and that was the overall exercise of
today's presentation for you. So if there's any questions, I'd be more than happy to
answer them, Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you so much, Mr. Teruya.
resource people at this time?

Mr. White, questions for our

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No, I think he just made my point. And the, you know, to see that, you
know, one is adjusted downwards to 96,000 when it, at a total area of 11 acres versus
the half-acre parcel at 368,000. I don't know of anyone that can look at that and say,
wow, that makes sense, that's really fair. So, no, I got no questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Guzman, questions at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Not at this time, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
Like the old statement says, one picture is worth a
thousand words. Got the picture. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Both of these are in tax appeal courts?
MR. TERUYA: Chairman? No, these are not at the board level or at a tax appeal court level
but it is just showing you the disparity that we're having under the current rules.
We're not saying that how we're doing it is right or wrong. We're just saying that it is
not very clear as to how to value the home site. If I administratively just choose to
make the decision how to value that, I'm sure the public, you '11 have 3,000 people
giving you a call. So I think that by going through the Council and figuring out how
you want to administer it is going to be a better course of action.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Very good. Thank you for the clear example, Department.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and thank you, Mr. Teruya, for your
examples. Mr. White, Chair White, made a comment about we have the ability and the
rules in, since 1981. Is that in administrative rules or is that in ordinance?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Teruya?
MR. TERUYA: I believe in '81, and that's when the County took home rule of property tax
and prior to having it as a State function. We have rules of procedure as memos. I
think Director is looking at it right now. I believe it has the effect of law but similar
does Big Island, at that time that had the same type of rules. To just change
midstream of how you value a home site is not going to be effective.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, I understand that, your comments there, but if we do it
via law versus rule, which has the effect of law, it is changing midstream, that's the
first comment. The other one is, what happened on the Big Island, 'cause you keep
mentioning the Big Island, and somebody doing exactly what we're, what you have the
option to do, what happened?
MR. TERUYA: In the Big Island, the administrator at the time made the decision to value
home sites like how we think we're going to value home sites as comparables. When
he made that change, there was so much public outcry that the council, the following
year, made all home sites valued at $500. So that's how much money that they lost.
You can imagine how much money they lost by going from one system to a new
system to the third system, which effectively made them lose more money than the
first system. So I don't think for, a $500 home site is equitable among all properties.
And that's why I feel that by going through the Council and identifying how we're
going to value a home site would be the best structure for this Committee and for the
residents.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No questions or comments. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. I wanted the Department...so thank you for that example,
Department. The other component, again, was I was going to ask Mr. Teruya and
Mr. Agsalog, from your Department and your responsibility regarding taxation in
agricultural areas, any comments regarding moving towards a one unified or one
agreeable definition for agriculture, one ag plan, as well as consideration of a
Schedule F to verify status? You folks have any comment at this time you wish to
share?
MR. TERUYA: Chairman, after 15 years you kind of hear it all. I think a dedication is good.
I think the Ag Working Group brought up a good point about parcels that may be,
have its challenges with dedication. I don't think dedication is a at-all-costs measure.
I think it's good because it alerts people when they buy properties, what are they, they
gotta live with, dedication runs with the land. Dedication is also good because it
provides us with a mechanism of a rollback should you fail to meet your, whatever
you're trying to dedicate. It is a large savings so I think there's consequences that
comes with it. I think the Schedule F, from all workings groups, it was one of the
items that they've identified that a commercial farm would schedule. So I think a
Schedule F is a good mechanism. Is aGE number .. .I mean, there's several things. I
don't think you can, there's going to be so many different situations that we come
upon of the 5,000-somewhat people that are currently receiving it, that it's not going
to be a one-fit-all, and I think the working group initially, in 2000, had identified a
board, so to speak, is the opportunity for that individual with a rare situation to state
the case as to why he was denied, I think it is a good fallback measure for that. But I
think there's nothing in it that we are opposed to. I think we prefer it to be simple.
That is the easiest for the Department to carry out. Whether it's a person, expertise in
agriculture, is the best, I'm not sure. Maybe there's mechanisms in there already that
will create a lot of parcels to fall out because they probably do not file a Schedule F
and maybe an income test of some amount, but I think there is time for that
discussion to one, identify some bare needs of a agricultural producing lot and the
home site. And I think that alone, Chairman, will get you very close to your
50 percent. When we find or send out mailers to people who bought properties and
asked them about the agricultural use, I mean, they don't even know what
agricultural use we're talking about. So, you know, just by law of averages, Chairman,
I think even by, you know, sending them a required of dedication, a Schedule F, et
cetera, will weed a number of parcels out to begin with. So with that said, we're
always looking forward to working with the Council, the working group or whoever, to
provide numbers, but it's ultimately putting something forth that's really going to
make a difference for this Council and this body, Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Teruya. Two things I wanted to ask that may help the
Committee. We understand that the State allows landowners to dedicate land under
ag, under the State dedication, and they go before the Land Use Commission. So I
think A&B went before commission to, I take that back, the word is designation, I
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believe, 13,000 acres in Central Maui as prime agriculture land. When the State
agreed and gave them that designation, did that qualify the landowner any additional
real property advantages or everything stayed status quo?
MR. TERUYA: Chairman, I'm assuming that they are currently receiving Agriculture and
they would continue. There is no additional benefits that the ordinance provides other
than to dedicate for a longer period, such as the 20-year dedication, which would
bring the valuation down in half. So that is the only advantage that I know of is to
secure a 20-year land dedication.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. As far as we understand, the State does not give the landowner any
type of taxation or benefit from that designation that we are aware of?
MR. TERUYA: No, Chairman, as you know, taxation is a home rule by the County.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right, right.
MR. TERUYA: The State does not afford any taxation benefits.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I don't know. Maybe they felt, you know, rich, and say, we going give you
a credit for purchases of equipment or something, you know, I'm not sure. The other
thing, I think, I want to bring up so that Members can at least think about, 'cause I
am also willing to look at ways of shortening and looking at possible, even rezoning of
lands whereby the landowner is saying, I know I'm not a farmer, I know I not going do
ag, I'm willing to pay my rightful share of taxes, but I don't think agriculture is the
right designation for me 'cause I would like to put up one tennis court and one
swimming pool and if I stay in ag, I need one ag plan yet. So maybe I would ask for
consideration under Rural two acre since I have a two-acre lot and nobody wants me
to subsidize, subdivide further, I'm willing to go in R two acre and pay the tax for that
and then I can build my tennis court and swimming pool. But that takes time, so I
would say, you know, I am asking if that's something we want to consider too because
I think it's also fair for the property owners that say, I'm not the farmer, I want to pay
my fair share, help me, put me in a class that makes sense for me and the County,
and I'll pay my taxes 'cause I'm not going to farm. Excuse me, thank you, Mr. White.
So I just bring it up because I think that's something we need to consider to also
assist that property owner that's being very upfront with the County, saying he's not
going to farm, his classification is not that great as soil content or whatever it be, and
he wants to pay his share of taxes. I don't think they need, they should wait two years
for get one rezoning or some type of changes in land use to be able to accomplish that.
So I just throw that out, at, that that's something we may want to say, from the
Council, will initiate and we'll put 180-day clock or whatever, that within 6 months,
we can get you squared away. And so with that, Mr. Teruya, I know you've done it
before, but I would ask you to also send back to this Committee, your calendar of
when things happen for your requirements because if we do certain things now, we
may be too late for the next cycle already. So I just want us to be aware that if this
goes in effect, it'll be the second cycle, which is almost two years down the road if we
make certain changes, and I just want the Members to be clear when things may or
may not take effect, 'cause it ain't gonna happen like that, Members. Ms. Cochran?
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And, Chair, when you, in your opening
comments, you did and a little bit ago, wanted to work off possibly the Federal ag
definition so I've been trying to Google that -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --and it is not coming. I cannot find it. It is, just doesn't
come up, like this definition or ag by the, you know, Federal government, so if-CHAIR HOKAMA: We'll have Staff-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --we can get ...
CHAIR HOKAMA:
copy--

--pull that out and make sure each member of the Committee has a

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Great.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. And also in regards to IAL and for an ag land
designations on the State level, I believe when it was instituted there was supposed to
have been a comprehensive plan, I think, Statewide, and I don't believe, and each
county supposed to do their own. And I don't think we had, or started, or is going, I
don't know, are we going to, are we supposed to do this and complete it, and where is
that?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Great question.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I'd like to know.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I see Mr. Couch chomping.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, he knows.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes, that's one of the things I've been working with the
Planning Department. They're responsible for doing that but they haven't been, you
know, the State said we're going to fund you to do this and they haven't funded the
Planning Department to do that. So either we, as the County, can fund and hopefully
get a reimbursement from the State or they're still going to wait for the State to fund
it, the State Legislature to fund the study. So that's something that maybe we would
want to discuss too.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for those thoughts. Ms. Crivello?
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: In reference to Mr. Couch's comments about the Planning
Department and funding from the State, I would like ask Staff, your Staff, to look into
it. It is my understanding that one of our representatives or Senator was going to try
and, from last session, put in funding for the County, Maui County, to have
designated funds so that we could appropriately identify. The large landowners do it
on their own and, but I think the County in itself, through the Planning Department,
should do more and perhaps we can check further where that funds are, if it was
appropriated or not.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We11 follow up, Ms. Crivello. Ms. Cochran, yes?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, I mean, we put in 120,000 for that housing-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --study just a minute ago and so this is something, I think, I
know State mandate, you know, it's, where's the money that comes with it, never does,
but this is important. So if we can further that discussion, I'd be supportive. Thank
you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Cochran. Mr. Couch, any further questions or comments
at this time or need for Staff to go and get information?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, if we can find out ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we11 follow up on Ms. Cochran's -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --request. Yeah. Ms. Crivello, anything further? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No further comments. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I'm okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. All the questions have been asked in my mind. Thank
you, sir.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Ms. Cochran, any additional requests or thoughts?
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, thank you. This is your, oh, Mr. Teruya ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, Mr. Teruya. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry, Mr. Teruya. I guess this is off your own type of
program. This isn't something the public can tap into, yeah, okay, or our offices. But
I'm just looking, Chair, I'm trying to break this down a little bit more though in
regards to one property's dedicated, the other is not; one, I think, is claiming
homeowners exemption, the other is not; one is, has some building exemptions, the
bigger property has building exemption, well they both have building exemptions but
the second, more urbanized looking one has more, higher building exemption. So
what is the difference? I mean, you would think the agone dedicated would have, you
know, ag barn dwellings or whatever, versus structures, versus the other are strictly
dwellings of sort. So how does that all break down in a way ... Mr. Chair, if you don't
mind-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, no.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --to figure out exactly how we determine the bigger lot gets
the lesser taxation?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Teruya?
MR. TERUYA: Thank you, Chair. I don't have the detailed information but I can tell you for
certain that both parcels are receiving the home exemption, okay. If you look down, it
says, Other [sic] Class, both says 9: Homeowner. Regardless of how the exemption is
apportioned, it, if it doesn't go to the building, it spills over on the land. So it's first
applied to the building. In this case, I don't know which building they live in, how
much of the building they live in, so they're receiving it probably on one or the other
and it might be only, you know, it's hard for me to tell off the bat-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. TERUYA: --but I can tell you that both are receiving exemptions, the home exemption,
in this case. Because you can look under exemptions, under building exemption, in
one of 'em it says 62,300 therefore the net taxable of building is this and then it says
land exemptions. It has 28,900. So it mainly be, they're not getting the entire
200,000 because they're not entitled to the entire 200,000. In the second building, it
looks like they're receiving all of the 200,000 because it looks like 102, 100 plus land
exemption 97,900, so they're receiving it all. So it really depends on the situation.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. TERUYA: But in either case, the homeowner will be entitled to the exemption to
whatever they can qualify for, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
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MR. TERUYA: But you can see dramatically it's, basically the amount of land of the home
site in the two situations are very significantly valued differently. And that's all we say
is that our goal for the BF-70 was to create or correct the inequities in the current way
of doing things and that we believe all of the bills that probably going, be, go before
you, Chairman Hokama and I have talked about, is to talk about trying to streamline
our ordinance and make things simpler rather than two different or three different
ways. I think lot of the bills before you is aiming to that goal that I think Chairman
has in mind. So we're just here as resource to provide that information to clean up
the Code to make a little easier for people to understand.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you very much. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Any further questions or requests to the Chair regarding this
item? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No request but I just, just playing around on the RPT website. I chose
a Kahului lot from someone we all know reasonably well and that person has a house
site that is one quarter the size of what I consider my lot and they're paying $610. I'm
paying $80. So, you know, there's some, you know, it's a disparity that we need to fix
because the people that are living in Kahului, Wailuku and all the, you know, the
smaller lot areas, are paying significantly more than those of us that are fortunate
enough to live in the ag areas, so. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Any other, Members, any questions, comments for the Chair
or Mr. Agsalog or Mr. Teruya or Mr. Baz? And if you really want to, you can go ask
Mr. Ueoka a question too. Okay, if not, then, before we, I ask you to defer this item,
just to let you know, the Important Ag Lands matter is under the jurisdiction of
Mr. Guzman and his Committee. So if there's additional discussion, you may want to
have just within the IAL topic, again, we will work in concert with the other committee.
So, again, it is currently under Mr. Guzman's jurisdiction. Other than that, I want to
use this opportunity, committees function well because of staff. As committee chairs,
you all understand that and as the Council Chair, he understands that. I am happy
to say--well, I don't know if I'm happy-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, not happy.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --well, I kinda happy 'cause I consider this a upward movement for the
gentleman, he is a licensed engineer. And so this is Mr. Molina's last official meeting
with the Budget and Finance Committee as its, one of its senior staff. We'll lose him to
a sister agency, the Department of Water Supply. So we wish him well and good luck
if he comes before us during Budget. But I want to say to Mr. Molina, thank you for
your service. We are a better Committee 'cause of your assistance to us. We wish you
well in your future endeavor and much success with the Water Department and,
again, we thank you for serving the people of this County, Jordan. Thank you so
much.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Here, here.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and thank you for that. I also wanted to
express my best wishes. He's been, he was on my Committee for a while and still
kinda is. So, we're gonna miss him and wish him good luck and he's really good staff.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. And I totally agree that we're gonna miss
Mr. Molina. What I've appreciated about him is he came to Council Services from
Ms. Cochran's Office and so I knew that he had, as we call, the fire in his belly to
make a difference. And I have to say, after the time that he spent in Council Services,
he's shown himself to be someone who rises to the occasion whenever called upon
and, you know, that's a, it's a wonderful attribute to have. I don't think he's been
thrown a challenge that he has sidestepped when he's been in Council Services. So
the Water Department is getting a great guy and we will miss him. So, thank you, Mr.
Molina.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Yes, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair. And I will echo the same _ _ as my
colleagues. Jordan has not only been a steadfast and helped not only myself and
others with our polystyrene issues and others that he's come forward and worked his
tail off to make sure things came together. And, you know, a lot of this was after
hours. Our meetings were not the 9:00 to 5:00 variety meetings so and he put in the
extra time, always got information that was necessary to bring forward whatever issue
we were referring to, and I, too, will miss him but I know that by going to the
Department of Water Supply as an engineer, hopefully that'll help Mr. Taylor and that
Department even do a better job overall. I think his commitment to this County, bar
none, you know, as a young person, I'm very impressed. You know, most young
people at this age, they're too busy with other issues but Mr. Molina has proven time
in and time out that he is committed to make this County a better place for his future
and future generations. So I think when we have young leaders like that in our
community, I don't worry so much anymore, you know. Sometimes, you know, we all
get that, what is the next generation gonna be able to do, right? I think our parents
thought about us that way. Now we think about our children that way. But I think,
in general, I find a lot of young people that are really dedicated and they'll be the
future leaders, so just don't forget our senior programs, that's all I got to say about
that because that's where we're all headed right now and if anybody doesn't believe
me, just check your Social Security ledger. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Anyone else? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair, and, yeah, getting tired of saying goodbye
to Jordan but I don't think it's ever goodbye 'cause he's still with the County, from my
office. Yes, you need to have fire in your belly and that go get 'em attitude to work in
my office but then he, I didn't really lose him 'cause then he became a Legislative
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Analyst in my IEM Committee, so yay, still got to have Jordan and, again, yes, very
detail oriented, worked so hard, goes above and beyond always. And so now to have
him move to the Water Department, I am happy because I know they'll be some good
sense moving into that section of our County and some good things will start
happening. I did speak to Director Taylor the other day and said, hey, yeah, thanks,
taking Jordan, but he is very excited and has great plans to have Jordan there. So,
again, we haven't really lost him, he's in a good area in our department that is needed
for our upcoming young, you know, leaders like himself to be a part of. And I always
can't thank, actually, you know, his mom for raising--'cause his brother, too, worked a
little bit in my office--raising some great, great kids. So thanks to Kathy Kaohu, too,
for all her hard work with her children so, and we get to benefit by that. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. I'd like to wish Jordan a successful future.
It's been a pleasure working with you. You're very intelligent and your analytical skills
are very impressive. You've always come up with ideas that are thinking outside the
box and you're able to bounce things back and forth with me, so I did, I really
appreciate working with you in my first term and beyond. So good luck to you in your
future endeavors. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. I'll join the crowd, just to say a hui hou, mahalo
nui and the best of everything for your future and your pathways. So I certainly
appreciate your contributions. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Before the Chair defers the item and adjourns the meeting,
Mr. Molina, you have one last opportunity to talk stink about your employers, and this
is it. So if you wish to share a few comments, the Chair is happy to accommodate
you.
MR. MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I just want to thank the Councilmembers for the kind
words and the opportunity to, you know, be in this position and to learn and, you
know, serve the people of Maui County. It's been a great honor and appreciate
working with all the Members and, yeah, the opportunity and I just wish that more
Maui boys and Maui kids could, you know, have this opportunity as well. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
deferred.

Thank you, Mr. Molina.

Members, with no objections, BF-70 shall be

COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So ordered.
ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion

- 48-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

December 15, 2015

CHAIR HOKAMA: We have completed the business of this Committee for today. The Chair
has received information. We are unable to have quorum for our December 29th
meeting. So all items will be moved to the following month for consideration of posting
and this is our last meeting for the calendar year. So with that, Members, happy
holidays, safe everything. This meeting is adjourned . . . . (gavel) . ..
ADJOURN:

11:42 a.m.

APPROVED:

RIKI HOKAMA, Chmr
Budget and Finance Committee

bf:min: 151215:alp

Transcribed by: Annette L. Perkett
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